
Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service Headquarters, Bridle Road, Bootle, Merseyside L30 4YD Fax: 0151 296 4144 
Legal Services 0151 296 4122, Democratic Services: 0151 296 4112 

 
 
 
 

  
  
  
To: All Members of the Policy and Resources Committee 
(and any other Members who may wish to attend) 
 

J. Henshaw 
LLB (Hons) 
Clerk to the Authority 
 
 
 
 
Tel: 0151 296 4000 

Extn: 4112 Helen Peek 

  
  
 
Your ref:  Our ref   HP/NP Date: 22 July 2013 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 

 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the POLICY AND RESOURCES 

COMMITTEE to be held at 11.00 am on TUESDAY, 30TH JULY, 2013 in the Wirral 

Suite at Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, Bridle Road, Bootle. 

 

Please note: This meeting is followed by a Learning Lunch starting at 12:00pm 

and the Performance and Scrutiny Committee starting at 1:00pm. 

 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Clerk to the Authority 

 
 
Encl. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

30 JULY 2013 
 

AGENDA 
 

Members 

 

Les Byrom (Chair) 
Robbie Ayres 
Roy Gladden 
Ted Grannell 
Steve Niblock 
Denise Roberts 
Sharon Sullivan 
Pat Moloney 
 

 
 
 

1. Preliminary Matters  

 The Committee is requested to consider the identification of: 
 

a) declarations of interest by individual Members in relation to any item 
of business on the Agenda 

 
b) any additional items of business which the Chair has determined 

should be considered as matters of urgency; and 
 

c) items of business which may require the exclusion of the press and 
public during consideration thereof because of the possibility of the 
disclosure of exempt information. 

 

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  

 This is the first meeting of this committee in the municipal year 2013/14, 
therefore there are no previous minutes to consider.  

3. Presentation  - Local Enterprise Partnership  

 To consider a Presentation by representatives from the Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP), providing an update on the LEP and highlighting the 
benefits to the Authority in being a member of the LEP. 

4. IRMP 2014/15 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 (CFO/093/13) 

 To consider Report CFO/093/13 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, 
concerning whether it is necessary to produce an Integrated Risk 
Management Plan (IRMP) supplement for 2014/15. 
 



3 

5. External Reports On The Fire & Rescue Service (Pages 5 - 8) 

 (CFO/097/13) 

 To consider Report CFO/097/13 of the Deputy Chief Executive, concerning 
recent formal report on the Fire & Rescue Service. 

6. ICT Arrangements For The Merseyside Joint Control Centre (JCC) 
(Pages 9 - 60) 

 (CFO/077/13) 

 To consider Report CFO/077/13 of the Deputy Chief Executive, concerning 
an update on the proposed ICT future arrangements in the Merseyside 
Joint Control Centre. 
 
This Report contains EXEMPT information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
 

----------------------------------- 
If any Members have queries, comments or require additional information relating to any 

item on the agenda please contact Committee Services and we will endeavour to provide the 

information you require for the meeting. Of course this does not affect the right of any 

Member to raise questions in the meeting itself but it may assist Members in their 

consideration of an item if additional information is available. 

 
Refreshments 

 

Any Members attending on Authority business straight from work or for long periods of time, 

and require a sandwich, please contact Democratic Services, prior to your arrival, for 

arrangements to be made. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 AGENDA ITEM: 

REPORT TO:   
Meeting of the  

MERSEYSIDE FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY 
POLICY AND RESOURCES 

  
DATE: 30th JULY 2013 
  
REPORT NO.   CFO/093/13  
  
REPORTING OFFICER:   DEPUTY CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 
  
CONTACT OFFICER: MRS D APPLETON, DIRECTOR OF STRATEGIC 

PLANNING 
  
OFFICERS CONSULTED:  
  
SUBJECT: IRMP 2014-15 

 
THERE ARE NO APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 
 
 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To request that Members consider whether it is necessary to produce an 

Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) supplement for 2014-15.  
 
 

Recommendation 
 
2. That Members; 

a) Approve the recommendation not to produce an IRMP 
Supplement for 2014-15. 

 
 
Introduction & Background 
 
 

3. The production of an IRMP is a legislative requirement (Fire and Rescue Services 
Act 2004) and the National Framework details the requirement in the following 
way: 

 
“Each fire and rescue authority integrated risk management plan must:  

 be easily accessible and publicly available  

 reflect effective consultation throughout its development and at all review 
stages with the community, its workforce and representative bodies, and 
partners  

Agenda Item 4Page 1



 

 

 cover at least a three year time span and be reviewed and revised as often 
as it is necessary to ensure that fire and rescue authorities are able to 
deliver the requirements set out in this Framework  

 reflect up to date risk analyses and the evaluation of service delivery 
outcomes”  

 
 

4. The Authority approved and published its three year Integrated Risk Management 
Plan 2013 – 16 on 27th June 2013 following twelve weeks consultation. Members 
will be aware that this was a departure from the way in which all previous IRMPs 
have been produced. In the past, the draft IRMP was published in October for 
twelve weeks consultation, with the final version being approved at the Budget 
Authority meeting in the following February. This process was amended for 2013-
16 to account for the fact that the Authority’s government grant allocation for 
2013/15 was not announced until December 2012. As the current IRMP sets out 
the main ways in which the Authority will deliver the cuts announced in December 
2012, it was not possible to produce it prior to those cuts being announced.  
 
 

5. In previous years, the Authority has produced a three year IRMP and then 
refreshed that three year plan each year, or published an IRMP supplement with 
updated information and a new action plan. In each case, twelve weeks 
consultation has taken place. This year, the preparation of an IRMP supplement 
(to be published in draft in October 2013) has been considered, to put the 
publishing cycle back “on track”.  
 
 

6. However, it is proposed that this is not done on this occasion, for the following 
reasons; 
 

a) The actions contained within IRMP 2013-16 represent some of 
the most significant changes to have taken place in MFRA for 
many years and it would be unrealistic to believe that the actions 
contained within the 20113-16 IRMP would be fully implemented 
within the period 2013-14. Notably; 
 

• The adoption of a 10 minute response standard and 
associated changes;  

• The reduction to 28 fire appliances and subsequent changes 
to the staffing model and associated changes;  

• Changes to shift systems  

• Potential mergers of stations  

• Changes to the Marine Rescue service  
 
b) The IRMP 2013-16 consultation was only concluded on the 27th 

June 2013 prior to adoption by the Authority. 
 
 
7. As a result of all the above, it is considered that producing a supplement would not 

be an effective use of time or resources and that any other actions or changes that 

Page 2



 

 

might be added in an IRMP supplement for 2014-15 would be minimal in 
comparison.  
 
 

8. Members can be assured however that through the Performance and Scrutiny 
Committee’s regular monitoring of the Service Delivery Plan, they will be kept 
informed of performance against Local Performance Indicators covering a range of 
operational, non-operational and community safety priorities and also of 
performance against the actions contained within the IRMP, Functional and 
Equality and Diversity Plans. A Service Delivery Plan will be produced for 2014/15, 
in the months leading up to March 2014 and this will deal with any new areas of 
focus that are required for that year. It is not anticipated however, that this would 
any need to include new major projects relating to fire cover, community risk or 
other operational areas.  
 
 

9. Staff resources have reduced since the preparation of the current plan and the 
time saved by not preparing an IRMP supplement for 2014/15 will be put to good 
use in relation to implementing the current IRMP, preparing the Authority’s first 
Statement of Assurance (another requirement of the Framework) and ensuring 
that any public consultation relating to potential station mergers is thorough and 
meaningful. 

 
 

Equality & Diversity Implications 
 
10. The current IRMP has been fully Equality Impact assessed and the Service has 

also recently completed its three year Equality and Diversity Priorities Action Plan. 
It is not considered that there are any other equality and diversity implications 
arising from this report. 

 
 
Staff Implications 
 
11. If approved, staff time will be available to complete other major pieces of work as 

described above.  
 
 
Legal Implications 
 
12. It is considered that the Authority is complying with its legal obligations with 

regards to the National Framework by having published a three year plan. Should 
any major new and unanticipated issues arise that need to be included within an 
IRMP a supplement can be produced if required. 

 
 
Financial Implications & Value for Money 
 
13. It is considered that to produce an IRMP supplement for 2014-15 would not be an 

effective use of reduced resources, as all major current issues are included within 
the 2013-16 IRMP. 

Page 3



 

 

 
Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications 
 
14. The IRMP is particularly focused on community risk and incorporates health and 

safety. It is considered that the current IRMP 2013-16, deals with these matters 
adequately. 

 
 
Contribution to Our Mission – To Achieve; Safer Stronger Communities – Safe Effective 
Firefighters” 
 
15. The IRMP is the main Authority document that guides the activity of MFRS and 

explains to the public how MFRA meets its legal obligations with regards to the 
National Framework. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
List any supporting documents/evidence here 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Glossary of Terms 
 
Please list any acronyms used within this Report and appendices, including their 
meaning. 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 
REPORT TO:   
Meeting of the  

MERSEYSIDE FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY 
POLICY & RESOURCES 

  
DATE: 30TH JULY 2013 
  
REPORT NO.   CFO/097/13  

 
  
REPORTING OFFICER:   DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
  
CONTACT OFFICER: KIERAN TIMMINS - DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
  
OFFICERS CONSULTED:  
  
SUBJECT: EXTERNAL REPORTS ON THE FIRE & RESCUE 

SERVICE 

 
APPENDICES 
(Electronic 
copies only) 

A 
 
 
B 
 
 
 
C 

TITLE Facing the Future,  Sir Ken Knight 
Report: Improving Efficiency,  
 
Interoperability and Resilience of our 
Blue Light Services, Tobias Ellwood 
MP 
 
“Doing it justice” - Reform 
 

LINKS TO APPENDICES:    
Appendix A: http://goo.gl/5bjGC  

Appendix B: http://henryjacksonsociety.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/06/Blue-light-Report_LR.pdf  

Appendix C : http://www.reform.co.uk/resources/0000/0498/DoingItJustice.pdf   

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To formally present recent formal reports on the Fire and Rescue Service to the 

Authority. 
 

Recommendation 
 
2. Members are asked to consider their response to the reviews. 
 
 

Introduction & Background 
 

3. Members will be aware that the Fire Minister commissioned a review of the Fire 
and Rescue Service from the Chief Fire and Rescue Advisor. 

 
4. Sir Ken Knight published his review “Facing the Future” (Appendix A) 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 5



 

 

5. Members have already received copies of the report and considered in more 
detail some of the Merseyside specific issues at the Strategy day held on the 
10th July 2013 and have received several briefing papers. 
 

6. Since that report was issued, Members may be further aware that there have 
been two subsequent pieces of review work. 

 
a. The All Party Parliamentary Group on Homeland Security prepared report 

“Improving Efficiency, Interoperability and Resilience of our Blue Light 
Services” (Appendix B). 

b.  A report by the Reform organisation on the role of Police & Crime   
Commissioners “Doing it Justice” (Appendix C) 

 
7. Members will, of course, recognise that it already has a number of actions in 

place to tackle some of the challenges and opportunities identified within these 
reports.  For example,  
 
a. Through the budget and IRMP, it is making significant cuts in service as a  

result of funding cuts; 
 

b. As a result of the cuts it recognises it needs to be more efficient and is,  
therefore, consultation is underway around improving efficiency in shift 
patterns and work routines; 

 
c. Significant joint working with police and ambulance colleagues through most 

notably, the Joint Control Centre (JCC), the Hazards Area Response Team 
at Croxteth and sharing fire stations with the ambulance service. 

 
8. Members are asked to consider what actions and responses they wish to 

initiate in light of the various reviews. 
 

Equality & Diversity Implications 
 
9. None immediately arising 
 
Staff Implications 
 
10. None immediately arising 
 
Legal Implications 
 
11. None of the reports have any legal status.  The Fire Minister is to respond to 

the Sir Ken Knight review in late summer. 
 
Financial Implications & Value for Money 
 
12. None 
 
 
Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications 

Page 6



 

 

 
13. None 
 
Contribution to Our Mission – To Achieve; Safer Stronger Communities – Safe 
Effective Firefighters” 
 
14. It is important to continually review how we work in light of emerging ideas and 

initiatives. 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
 
*Glossary of Terms 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6Page 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 53

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 54

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 55
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 IRMP 2014/15
	5 External Reports On The Fire & Rescue Service
	6 ICT Arrangements For The Merseyside Joint Control Centre (JCC)
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Equality Impact Assessment


